
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

April 21, 2015, 5:30 PM 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jan J. Moore 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Gary Lewis 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations  
A) Presentation of plaque to Mr. Henry Clay for his years of service as Tree Board 

Chairman. 
  

4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
 

5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 04-02-2015 Budget Retreat Minutes 
b) 04-07-2015 Council Minutes 
c) 04-07-2015 Executive Session Minutes 
 

B) Consideration of a Motion to approve Special Event Permit 
a) Springhill Suites Conference Center - Charity Fundraiser for Statesboro Regional 

Sexual Assault Center on May 15, 2015 
 

C)  Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2015-09:A Resolution reappointing  
      J. Alvin Leaphart, IV as the Prosecuting Attorney of the Municipal Court for the City 
      of Statesboro. 

 
6. Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2015-10: A Resolution to approve 

adjustments to the pay and compensation plan to reclassify a Receptionist position, create 
a Storm water Technician position, reclassify an HR Coordinator position and create an 
HR coordinator position. 
 

7. Consideration of a Motion to award the contract for an integrated public sector financial 
management software solution to Tyler Technologies as they were selected through an 
extensive RFP process in the amount of $295,966.00 (includes: software / 
implementation, yearly maintenance / support fees and training travel expenses incurred 
by vendor). If approved, this will be funded by the GMA Lease Pool. This software will 
be utilized by all City of Statesboro departments. 

 
8. Consideration of a Motion to approve Summary Change Order No. 1 for Phase 1 - I-

16/301 Utility Infrastructure. The revised contract amount is $2,238,228.34, which is a 
decrease of $11,771.53. 
  



 
 

9. Consideration of a Motion to approve Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $130,278.52 
for Cawana Road Sewer and Water project. 
 

10. Consideration of a Motion to award general liability and workers compensation insurance 
renewal to Travelers Insurance in the amount of $1,039,302. This amount may vary 
throughout the year based on additions and deletions. This includes all areas of insurance 
except for equipment and vehicles in the Fire Department which is covered by the 
carrier VFIS. This will be funded by each department based on a percentage of usage 
formula. 
 

11. Consideration of a Motion to award a renewal of property, equipment and vehicle 
insurance coverage (Fire Dept) to VFIS in the amount of $36,949. This amount covers 
only property as the personnel liability of the Fire Department falls under the Travelers 
policy with other City personnel. VFIS offers current new replacement values for 
equipment as well as free needed training programs for fire departments. 

 
12. Consideration of a Motion to award the purchase of a service truck for the Fleet 

Maintenance Division to Summit Truck Equipment in the amount of $119,060.00. This 
will replace an existing 2002 model service truck. If approved, the current truck will be 
brought to Council to be declared as surplus once the new truck is received and put into 
use. This purchase is listed as CIP # FMD - 6 in the amount of $130,000.  
 

13. Introduction to the draft of a proposed Alcohol Ordinance. 
 

14. Other Business from City Council 
 

15. City Managers Comments 
 

16. Public Comments (General) 
 

17. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters”   
in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 

 
18. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
CITY COUNCIL BUDGET RETREAT MINUTES 

APRIL 02, 2015 

 
 
A City Council Budget Retreat was held on April 02, 2015 at 9:00 am in the City Hall Council 
Chambers at 50 East Main St. Statesboro, Georgia.  Present was Mayor Jan Moore, 
Councilmembers: Will Britt, Phil Boyum and John Riggs. Also present was City Manager 
Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling, City Attorney Alvin Leaphart, and Director of 
Community Development Mandi Cody.   
 
The meeting was called to order by Councilman Will Britt.   
 
 Department Heads present were: 
Director of Water/Wastewater Wayne Johnson, Assistant Director Water/Wastewater Van 
Collins, Director of Public Safety Wendell Turner, Gas Superintendent Steve Hotchkiss, Interim 
City Engineer Jason Boyles, Director of Human Resource Jeff Grant, Director of Purchasing 
Darren Prather and Finance Director Cindy West. 
 
Also present were other City employees as well as the Statesboro Herald news media. 
 
The meeting consisted of the department heads giving an overview of their budget for FY 2016 
which included their CIP Projects as well as goals and priorities, 2015 highlights, budget 
assumptions, storm water, alcohol fees, pay scales, insurance premiums as well as other 
proposals by the City Manager. Some of the topics were the installation of the fiber optic 
infrastructure to GSU, risk management certification and projects using SPLOST funds. The 
meeting ended with the discussion of goals and priorities along with a discussion of sidewalks 
and street lighting as well as a proposed salary increase for employees for the Fiscal Year 2016 
by the Mayor and Council Members.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:30 p.m. 
 
There was no action taken at this meeting. 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Council Minutes 

April 07, 2015 

 
A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on April 7th 2015 at 9:00 a.m. in the 
Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jan J. Moore, Council Members: Phil 
Boyum, John Riggs, Gary Lewis and Travis Chance. Also present were Interim City Manager 
Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling, City Attorney Alvin Leaphart, Assistant City Engineer 
Jason Boyles and Director of Planning and Development Mandi Cody.  Absent was Councilman 
Will Britt. 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Jan Moore 
 
The Invocation was given by Director of DSDA Allen Muldrew and Pledge of Allegiance was 
led by Councilman John Riggs 
 
Recognitions/Public Presentations: 
 
Presentation of Proclamation to the Bulloch Academy 2015 State Wrestling Championship 
Team 
 
Mayor Moore read and presented a Proclamation to the Bulloch Academy Wrestling Team for 
being the 2015 Class AAA State Champions 
 
Recognition of the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Distinguished 
Budget Award to the City of Statesboro Finance Department 
 
Mayor Moore presented the plaque to the Finance Department as Director of Finance Cindy 
West stated this is the 11th year of receiving this award. 
 
Presentation of Proclamation for National Public Safety Tele communicators Week 
 
Director of Public Safety Wendell Turner updated Council on National Public Safety Tele 
communicator week.  Mayor Moore read and presented the proclamation to the Tele 
communicator staff of the Statesboro Police Department. 
 
Recognition of Employee of the Month; Austin Ellerbee, Mechanic, 13 years for the Public 
Works Fleet Management Division 
 
 Mayor Moore presented a plaque to Austin Ellerbee for employee of the month.  
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
Public Comments (Agenda Items):   

A)  John Hunter and Gertrude Brown request to address Council regarding walkway behind 
Greene Street, flooding and roads being repaired on Morris and Green Streets. 
 

John Hunter and Gertrude Brown addressed Council regarding an abandoned railroad bed that is 
behind their yard as they are working hard to keep the weeds from over taking their land.  Mr. 
Hunter stated that the City was cutting these weeds and would like for the City to continue 
cutting these weeds along the railroad bed. He also stated they were having drainage issues on 
Morris and Green Street. Director of Planning and Development Mandi Cody stated this piece of 
railroad bed belongs to the Railroad Company and has been abandoned. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
     a) 03-17-2015 Council Minutes 
     b) 03-17-2015 Executive Session Minutes 

 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to approve the consent 
agenda in its entirety.  Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Review of the FY2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) presented by 
Richard Deal of Thigpen, Lanier, Westerfield and Deal CPA Accounting Firm 
 
Mr. Deal presented Council with an overview and highlights of the FY2014 Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report. 
 
Administrative Hearing for alleged alcohol violations as pursuant to Chapter 6 of the City 
of Statesboro Alcohol Ordinance: 
 

A) Enforcement from Georgia Department of Revenue Alcohol & Tobacco Law 
Enforcement Division 

Offence in 12 month period  Citation Date 
 
a) Farid Gharacharloo/Sepideh Mesri 1st Offense        February 5, 2015 

Club 125 LLC 
125 Gata Drive 
  

B) Enforcement from the Statesboro Police Department: 
         Offense in 12 month period  Citation Date  

a) James Larry Owens 1st Offense   February 13, 2015 
         Dingus Magees 
               3 Georgia Avenue 
 

b) Hazrat Rehman     1st Offense   February 13, 2015 
       Main Street Bar and Grill 
        230 South Main Street   



 
 

 
c) Clyde A Chapman III  1st Offense   February 13, 2015 
    Gnats Landing of Statesboro LLC 
    470 Main Street 
 
d) Kishorchandra Dodia  2nd Offense   February 13, 2015 
    Time Saver 
    301 North Main Street 
 
e) Jason Franklin   1st Offense   February 5, 2015 
    Shenanigans  
    1 University Plaza 

 
Mayor Moore conducted the hearing and all participants were sworn in by Mayor Moore. 
 
Mr. Gharachorloo, owner of Club 125 LLC waived his right to a hearing and agreed to the 
violation of furnishing alcohol to under age persons. Mayor Moore then asked for a motion and 
Mr. Gharachorloo agreed that based on the evidence presented here today that Council finds that 
the licensee, his agents, and or employees did violate Chapter 6 if the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Statesboro in the twelve month period immediately preceding this hearing. Councilman 
Lewis made the motion seconded by Councilman Riggs to accept the guilty plea from Mr. 
Gharachorloo. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
For the penalty of the violation, Councilman Lewis made a motion seconded by Councilman 
Riggs to consider this a first offense with a warning. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote.  
 
Mr. Owens, owner of Dingus Magees waived his right to a hearing and agreed to the violation of 
furnishing alcohol to under age persons. Mayor Moore then asked for a motion and Mr. Owens 
agreed that based on the evidence presented here today that Council finds that the licensee, his 
agents, and or employees did violate Chapter 6 if the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Statesboro in the twelve month period immediately preceding this hearing. Councilman Lewis 
made the motion seconded by Councilman Riggs to accept the guilty plea from Mr. Owens. 
Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
For the penalty of the violation, Councilman Boyum made a motion seconded by Councilman 
Lewis to consider this a first offense with a warning. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote.  
 
Mr. Rehman, owner of Main Street Bar and Grill waived his right to a hearing and agreed to the 
violation of furnishing alcohol to under age persons. Mayor Moore then asked for a motion and 
Mr. Rehman agreed that based on the evidence presented here today that Council finds that the 
licensee, his agents, and or employees did violate Chapter 6 if the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Statesboro in the twelve month period immediately preceding this hearing. Councilman 
Lewis made the motion seconded by Councilman Riggs to accept the guilty plea from Mr. 



 
 

Rehman. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
For the penalty of the violation, Councilman Boyum made a motion seconded by Councilman 
Lewis to consider this a first offense with a warning. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Mr. Chapman, owner of Gnats Landing of Statesboro LLC waived his right to a hearing and 
agreed to the violation of furnishing alcohol to under age persons. Mayor Moore then asked for a 
motion and Mr. Chapman agreed that based on the evidence presented here today that Council 
finds that the licensee, his agents, and or employees did violate Chapter 6 if the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Statesboro in the twelve month period immediately preceding this 
hearing. Councilman Riggs made the motion seconded by Councilman Lewis to accept the guilty 
plea from Mr. Chapman. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
For the penalty of the violation, Councilman Boyum made a motion seconded by Councilman 
Lewis to consider this a first offense with a warning. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Mr. Dodia, owner of Time Saver waived his right to a hearing and agreed to the violation of 
furnishing alcohol to under age persons. Mayor Moore then asked for a motion and Mr. Dodia 
agreed that based on the evidence presented here today that Council finds that the licensee, his 
agents, and or employees did violate Chapter 6 if the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Statesboro in the twelve month period immediately preceding this hearing. Councilman Lewis 
made the motion seconded by Councilman Riggs to accept the guilty plea from Mr. Dodia. 
Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
For the penalty of the violation, Councilman Riggs made a motion seconded by Councilman 
Lewis to approve a 3 day suspension as punishment for this 2nd offense. The suspension of the 
alcohol license will start on 12:01am on Thursday April 9th and run until midnight on Sunday 
April 12th. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
The violation for Jason Franklin owner of Shenanigans will be deterred until the  first Council 
Meeting in May. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Consideration of a motion to award a purchase contract to Fisher Safety for the purchase 
of SCBA and PASS units via the GSA federal contract in the amount of $37,101.24. these 
units are budgeted for the Fire Department under CIP project numbers FD-71/T1 (Funded 
by 2007 SPLOST) and FD-72 (Funded by 2007 SPLOST). The total amount budgeted is 
$38,980.00. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion seconded by Councilman Lewis to award a purchase 
contract with Fisher Safety for the purchase of SCBA and PASS units in the amount of 
$37,101.24. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to award the purchase of a tractor and mower combination to 
Aimtrac in the amount of $38,210.  This will replace an existing 20 year old tractor 
currently in use at our landfill facility. If approved, the current tractor will be brought to 
Council to be declared a surplus once the new one is received and put into use.  This 
purchase is listed in CIP #SWD-40/$37,000 and SWD-36/ $10,000.   
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to award the purchase of a 
tractor and mower combination to Aimtrac in the amount of $38,210. Councilman Boyum, 
Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to award a “Sole Source Purchase” for a Stainless Steel Rotary 
Fine Screen Drum and Sprocket to Parkson in the amount of $41,996.00. This item is 
budgeted and will be funded utilizing Aid to Construction funds. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion seconded by Councilman Lewis to award a “Sole Source 
Purchase” for a Stainless Steel Rotary Fine Screen Drum and Sprocket to Parkson in the amout 
of $41,996.00. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to award a “Sole Source Purchase” for a complete Raw Waste 
Pump Motor, Impeller and Volute assembly to Smith & Loveless Georgia, Inc. in the 
amount of 28,956.68. This item is budgeted and will be funded utilizing Aid to Construction 
funds. 
 
Councilman Lewis made a motion seconded by Councilman Chance to award a “Sole Source 
Purchase” for a complete Raw Waste Pump Motor, Impeller and Volute assembly to Smith & 
Loveless Georgia Inc. in the amount of $28,956.68. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote.  
 
Other Business from City Council 
 
Mayor Moore asked that Director of Natural Gas Steve Hotchkiss come forward to speak with 
Council regarding the purchase of remote gas meters.  There is a timeline issue and that is why 
this item is being brought up under other business.  Mr. Hotchkiss asked for approval of a quote 
in the amount of $379,275.00 for a “Sole Source Purchase” from Equipment Controls Company 
Inc. Councilman Boyum made a motion seconded by Chance to approve the Purchase of Remote 



 
 

Read Gas Meters from Equipment Controls Company Inc. in the amount of $379,275.00.  
Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Councilman Riggs asked where we stand on revamping the Alcohol Ordinance.  Mayor Moore 
stated that House Bill 152 has not been signed yet. We will need to put this item on the next 
agenda for discussion.  
 
City Managers Comments 
 
Interim City Manager Robert Cheshire stated the budget retreat went well. He also commended 
the Finance department and all department heads for their efforts.  Mr. Cheshire stated that 
House Bill 170 which was the Transportation Bill passed.   He also updated Council on the 
CDBG drainage street project in the Gordon street area. Director of Planning and Development 
Mandi Cody gave an update the FAB Lab.    
 
Public Comments (General): This item on the original agenda was moved up to “public 
comments” (agenda item) by Mayor Moore. 
 
 Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” 
in accordance with O.C.G.A§50-14-3 (2012) 
 
At 10:45 a.m., Councilman Boyum made a motion seconded by Chance to enter into Executive 
Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in 
favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
11:50 a.m., Councilman Riggs made a motion seconded by Lewis to exit executive session.  
Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion.  The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
At 11:50 a.m., Mayor Moore called the meeting back to order with no action taken.   
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:51 a.m. 









Resolution Appointing Municipal Court Prosecuting Attorney 

RESOLUTION  2015-09 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING J. ALVIN LEAPHART, IV AS 
THE PROSECUTING ATTORNEY OF THE MUNICIPAL COURT 
FOR THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA, PURSUANT TO 
THE OFFICIAL CODE OF GEORGIA ANNOTATED, SECTION 
15-18-94(c) AND SECTION 5-12 ET SEQ OF THE CHARTER  
OF THE CITY OF STATESBORO. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia while in regular session on 
April 21, 2015 as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1:  That J. Alvin Leaphart, IV is hereby appointed as the Prosecuting  
 Attorney of the Municipal Court for the City of Statesboro, Georgia; and 
 
 SECTION 2:  This appointment is effective for a term of two (2) years, pursuant to  
 Section 5-17 of the Charter of the City of Statesboro, Georgia. 
 
 SECTION 3:  Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Resolution the  
 Municipal Court Clerk shall notify the Prosecuting Attorneys’ Council of the State of  
 Georgia of this appointment as required under Georgia law. 
 
 SECTION 4:  That this resolution shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 
RESOLVED this ________ day of April, 2015. 
 
 
       City of Statesboro, Georgia 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
 
       Attest: 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Sue Starling, City Clerk 
 



RESOLUTION 2015-10: A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE JOB  
POSITION CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION PLAN 

  
 

 
 THAT WHEREAS, it is essential to have qualified municipal employees in order 
to provide reliable services to the citizens of Statesboro; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to accomplish this the Mayor and City Council previously 
have adopted a new Job Position Classification and Compensation Plan on July 2, 2006; 
and  
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has made a recommendation to reclassify a 
Receptionist position, create a Stormwater Technician position, reclassify an HR 
Coordinator position and create an HR coordinator position; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 
of Statesboro, Georgia in regular session assembled this 21st day of April, 2015 as 
follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the Job Position Classification and Compensation Plan, which 
includes a list of job titles and pay grades; a grade and step pay matrix; and written job 
descriptions for each position with City government, previously adopted on July 1, 
2006, and as subsequently amended, is hereby further amended as follows: 
 

• That the Municipal Court Receptionist position classification is hereby amended 
by reclassifying the position to a Deputy Clerk Pay Grade 10;  
 

• That the Engineering Department is creating the position classification of 
Stormwater Technician at the Pay Grade of 18; Job description attached;  
 

• That the HR Department reclassify the classification title of current HR 
Coordinator position to a Sr. Human Resources Coordinator; Job description 
attached; 
 

• That the Human Resources Department is creating the position of Human 
Resources Coordinator, Pay Grade 17; Job Description is attached;  

 
Section 2.  That this Resolution shall be and remain in full force and effect from  

and after its date of adoption. 
 
 Passed and adopted this 21st day of April, 21 2015. 



 
 CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
  
 
 By: ____________________________ 
                  Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
 
 
 Attest: __________________________ 
                          Sue Starling, City Clerk 

























































 

Purchasing 

 

Memo 
 
 
TO:  Robert Cheshire, City Manager 
  
FROM: Darren Prather, Purchasing Director 
 
DATE: 3-9-2015 
 
Re:   Recommendation: Contract Award/Integrated Public Sector Financial  
  Management Software Solution 
                          
 
After having conducted a lengthy request for proposals (RFP) process and gaining 
approval by the City Council to enter into negotiations, we have produced and received a 
final offer from Tyler Technologies.  After the numerous stages of evaluation in the RFP 
process, the evaluation committee is confident of the quality of this product and the 
company (Tyler Technologies) that represents it. Through the numerous stages of this 
RFP process, we have received very favorable ratings from City of Statesboro staff and 
other municipalities that were contacted. We expect this software to produce a vastly 
efficient outcome in every area that it is utilized. The following financial information 
listed represents the original amount offered by Tyler and the revised negotiated amount 
that constitutes the final contract to be considered. 
 
Tyler Technologies: 
 
Original Contract Amount   Negotiated Contract Amount 
 
$233,595 (Software  & Implementation) $220,656 (Software & Implementation) 
$  35,445 (Yearly Maint./Support Fees)  $  31,325 (Yearly Maint./Support Fees) 
$  46,004 (Travel Expenses—Not to Exceed) $  43,985 (Travel Expenses—Not to Exceed) 
 
Total: $315,044     Total: $295,966 
 
 



 
After completion of the negotiation process, it is believed that Tyler came to the table 
with a very competitive original bid amount. They stated an initial twenty-five percent 
(25%) preferred client discount on the software portion of their proposed cost amount 
originally submitted in the RFP. However, we were able to obtain further cost reductions 
in the areas listed above through further negotiations. Please note that the initial yearly 
maintenance amount ($31,325) will increase approximately three (3%) percent a year for 
the next five years of maintenance contract renewal. In conclusion, we recommend the 
contract for integrated public sector financial management software be awarded to Tyler 
Technologies in the amount of $295,966.00 (includes: software/implementation, yearly 
maintenance/support fees and training travel expenses incurred by vendor) with the 
understanding that a yearly maintenance fee will be required each additional year.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

















 

Purchasing 

 

Memo 
 
 
TO:  Robert Cheshire, City Manager 
  
FROM: Darren Prather, Purchasing Director 
 
DATE: 4-14-2015 
 
Re:   Recommendation—General Liability & Workers Compensation Insurance  
                                       Renewal 
 
The City of Statesboro is on the last year of the insurance brokerage contract with Glenn/Davis Insurance 
as they serve as our broker to access carrier market. It is their job to shop the markets to generate the best 
solution for our unique needs. By using the broker method, we have access to all insurance carriers that 
serve our area and we feel this greatly benefits the final insurance product received by the City of 
Statesboro. Our broker, Glenn/Davis produced two options for our consideration and they are as follows: 
 
Option 1: 
 
$362,266.68   (Remain with One Beacon/ Covers General Liability and all areas except workers  
                         compensation (GIRMA) and Fire Dept. equipment/vehicles—covered by VFIS). 
$36,949.00     (VFIS—covers Fire Dept. equipment, vehicles and property) 
$537,000.00   (Workers compensation through GIRMA—total represents $347,000 premium and  
                         a projected $190,000 in payments on claims for the year.) 
$936,215.68   (Projected total using this option) 
 
Option 2: 
 
$491,614.00   (Travelers to cover general liability areas) 
$36,949.00     (VFIS—covers Fire Dept. equipment, vehicles and property) 
$547,688.00   (Travelers to cover workers compensation—this is a capped amount) 
$1,039,302.00  (Projected total using this option) 
 
Note: Travelers offers a capped amount for our workers compensation insurance in this option. 
 
 



After having considered both options, we recommend Option 2. Travelers will provide insurance for all 
areas except for property, equipment and vehicles for the Fire Department. This will be covered by VFIS as 
they offer a program that provides training and new full market value replacement for any damaged items 
covered. Also, the workers compensation provided by Travelers is a capped amount. Currently, we pay a 
premium and the full amount of claims under the $50,000 amount. Travelers also includes its highly valued 
risk management/workers compensation management program. Coupled with the potential new Human 
Resources position that will handle case management of workers compensation claims, this will be an 
effective tool in gaining control of our ailing workers compensation program. This program is included in 
this insurance package as quoted. Since this is a capped amount ($547,688.00) Travelers has an incentive to 
keep the claims amount as low as possible to increase their profit. In turn, we will receive a better rating to 
take to market during the next renewal period. As of this renewal, only GIRMA and Travelers were willing 
to quote coverage due to our industry rating. If Travelers is chosen, we will have to give GIRMA a 90 day 
notice of cancellation. Human Resources has contacted other municipalities and received outstanding 
reports as to the Travelers risk management/workers compensation management program and we expect 
the same results. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

Purchasing 

 

Memo 
 
 
TO:  Robert Cheshire, City Manager 
  
FROM: Darren Prather, Purchasing Director 
 
DATE: 4-14-2015 
 
Re:  Recommendation—Bid Award Maintenance Service Truck—Fleet Maintenance 
 
The City of Statesboro issued an invitation to bid for a maintenance service truck for use in our Fleet Maintenance 
division. This truck, if approved, consists of a cab and chassis/service body with crane and service equipment 
combination. This truck will be replacing a 2002 model service truck currently in use by Fleet Maintenance which will 
be brought to Council to be declared surplus after we take delivery of the new truck. The purchase of this truck, if 
approved, is funded in the amount of $130,000 with Fleet funds and the GMA lease pool.  This is a re-bid on this truck.  
It was first brought before city council on February 3, 2015 as a re-bid due to only one bid being received at that time.   
 
Two sealed bids were received on this second bid attempt and the results are as follows: 
  

Dealer   Model          Bid Amount 
 

1. Summit Truck Equipment 2015 Dodge 5500/2015 Summit 7 Series Body/6620 crane     $119,060.00 
 

2. Olathe Dodge  2015 Dodge 5500/2015 Summit 7 Series Body/6620 crane     $119,500.00 
 
 

Note: Bid totals represent the complete unit combined into one bid price as requested in the bid package. 
 
Having met the required specifications, we recommend the bid award be made to Summit Truck Equipment for the 
purchase of a maintenance service truck, as listed above, in the amount of $119,060.00.  

 
 
 
 
 
  


	04-21-2015 Council Agenda
	04-02-2015 council budget retreat minutes
	04-07-2015 Council Minutes
	04-2015 STATESBORO REGIONAL SEXUAL ASSAU
	04-2015-09 Resolution Appointing Municipal Court Prosecuting Attorney
	04-2015-10 Resolution Engineering -HR - Municipal Court
	04-2015-10 Resolution backup
	04-2015 Tyler Rec Award
	04-2015 Phase 1 - I-16 Summary Change Order 1
	04-2015 Cawana Change Order #2 (3)
	04+2015 Insurance Renewal Rec
	04-2015-24 Fleet Service Truck Bid Award Recommendation

